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During the autumn 2011 fifth season of archaeological excavations was 
conducted in the Sobibór camp , the primary goal was to continue to 
expose the road that connected Camp II with Camp III that the Germans 
called the "Himmelfahrtsstrasse." The northern section of this road was 
revealed in previous excavation season in the spring of 2011 (Ha XXV). 
In the present season we concentrated on uncovering the road towards the 
southeast (Ha XL), (Ha XXXIX), (Ha XXXII), excavating sixty-two 
excavation squares, measuring a total of 1550 square meters. (Fig. 1). 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 – Plan of the 2011 excavation 
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Two hundred and twenty-five meters of the road was exposed and 
identified by two dark parallel tracks, half a meter in width, situated four 
meters apart. These tracks were probably constructed from sheets of 
wood. Between the tracks the remains of posts were revealed, ca. 3 
meters apart, that apparently supported a barbed wire fence. One meter 
beyond the tracks a second row of posts was uncovered spaced ca. 3 
meters apart. This may have been an exterior fence that guarded the 
tracks or light posts that lit the road at night. The author of the book, Tel 
Olam (1965:313), Mordacai Tzanin visited Sobibór in 1945-6 and 
collected eye-witness accounts from local residents. According to those 
accounts, it appears that the camp operated both day and night and there 
are many accounts of Jews arriving at nighttime who were subsequently 
sent into the gas chambers by the Nazis. Additional information points to 
the cremation of the bodies of the victims during daylight hours in Camp 
III. A large part of Camp II was used as an agricultural farm and evidence 
of this can be seen in aerial photographs of the site in 1940 (Photo 1). The 
excavations showed that the road was built over cultivated fields and a 
section marked by agricultural equipment was uncovered (Photo 2). 
Following the destruction of the camp in 1943, this area was never again 
cultivated and during the 1950s the Poles planted a forest over the site.  

 

 

Photo 1 – German air force aerial photograph, 1940 GX19265 frame 714 



 

Photo 2 – The road passes over tractor marks 

A number of objekt with a large number of artifacts were discovered in 
the southeast area where the road terminates. The largest objekt, 1124, 
contained numerous metal parts, pieces of glass and coins. 

The second area that was excavated in the fall season was Objekt E. 
Excavation squares were opened to the south (Figure 3) in order to 
continue uncovering the channel that was revealed by Prof. Kola in 2001 
and later by our team between 2007 and 2011. Thirteen excavation 
squares were opened over and area of 325 square meters. The channel is 
100 meters long, six meters wide near the surface, five meters wide at its 
base and between 0.6 and 0.8 m. deep. A cache of rifle and pistol 
cartridges and a number of bullets was discovered in the channel. In 2001 
the Polish team conducted an excavation in the northern part of the 
channel where they uncovered 1830 bullets (Kola 2001: 12). An 
entranceway with three steps carved in the sand, which were probably 
covered with wooden planks was revealed in the southern part of the 
channel (Photo 3). The findings in Objekt E raise a number of questions 
concerning its function. The artifacts found there leads us to conclude that 
shooting took place here, and may have been used by Ukaranian soldiers 
for training purposes.   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3 - Objekt E 

This excavation season leaves us with a number of questions concerning 
Camp III such it is necessary to continue to carry out research throughout 
the Sobibór camp. 

 

Photo 3 – the entranceway to Objekt E 


